l I Agl\t()aar:'lcyeCou nty
ALLIANCE

Audit Committee Meeting

Wednesday, November 19, 2025, at 8:00 am
111 Washington Ave, Suite 100, Albany, NY 12210
Conference Room

AGENDA

. Welcome & Roll Call p. 1-2 Rich Rosen, Chair

Review/Approve Meeting Minutes — March 26, 2025 p.3-4  Rich Rosen, Chair

. Annual Independent Auditor Engagement Presentation p.5-34  Kevin Testo,

Bonadio
a. (action) Resolution 2025-11-01 p.5

Review Policies

. Adjournment Rich Rosen, Chair



l I Agl\t(:aar:'lcyeCou nty
ALLIANCE

Audit Committee Meeting

Wednesday, November 19, 2025, at 8:00 am
111 Washington Ave, Suite 100, Albany, NY 12210
Conference Room

ROLL CALL

Board Member

Present/Excused/Absent

Rich Rosen, Chair

Alan Goldberg, Member

Alan Alexander, Member

Excused

Laura Zeliger, Member

Helen Brooks, Member

Mike Cassidy, Member

Michael Cinquanti, Member

Caitlin O’Brien, Ex-Officio

Michael McLaughlin, Ex-Officio




ADVANCE ALBANY COUNTY ALLIANCE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
AUDIT COMMITTEE

3/26/2025 MEETING MINUTES

A Meeting of the Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation Audit Committee
was held on Wednesday, Mar 26, 2025, at 8:30 a.m. at 111 Washington Ave, Albany, NY. Members
of the public were able to attend the meeting by attending in person.

The following Committee Members were present at, and participated in, the meeting:
- Rich Rosen, Committee Chairperson/Board Member
- Alan Goldberg, Board/Committee Member
- Alan D Alexander, Board /Committee Member
- Helen Brooks, Board/Committee Member
- Michael Cinquanti, Board/Committee Member
- Caitlin O'Brien, Chief of Staff, Albany County Legislature (Ex officio)

Corporation Directors excused:
- Michael Cassidy, Board/Committee Member
- Laura Zeliger, Board/Committee Member
- Michael McLaughlin, Albany County Deputy County Executive (Ex officio)

Corporation Staff Present:
- Kevin O’Connor, CEO
- Amy Thompson, CFO
- Kevin Catalano, Senior Vice-President & Director of Commercial Lending
- Clayton Besch, Project Manager
- Dylan Turek, Senior Vice-President of Development
- Antionette Dukes-Hedge, Economic Development Coordinator
- Sara Paulen, Executive Assistant

Also present at the meeting:
- Thomas Owens, Esq.
- Donald J. Hillmann, Esq.
- Kevin Testo, Bonadio & Co

The meeting was called to order at 8:33 a.m.

1. For the first order of business, Mr. Rosen called the Audit Committee meeting to order. Mr.
Rosen made a roll call and confirmed there was a quorum.

2. The next order of business was the Corporation’s CFO Report. Ms. Thompson presented
Resolution 2025-03-01, which confirms the Corporation’s auditor, The Bonadio Group, is
fully “independent” in accordance with Public Authority Law. Following a review/discussion
by the Commiteee of the requirements and after a motion made by Mr. Alexander to accept
Resolution 2025-03-01, seconded by Mr. Cinquanti, Resolution 2025-03-01 was accepted
pursuant to a unanimous vote. Mr. Rosen introduced Mr. Testo of the Bonadio Group, who
gave a presentation of the 2024 Audited Financial Statement and Independent Audit Results.
Mr. Testo reviewed the Audit Report and related communications including the 2024 Audited
Financial Statements. Mr. Testo concluded that the Bonadio Group will issue an unqualified



ADVANCE ALBANY COUNTY ALLIANCE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
AUDIT COMMITTEE

3/26/2025 MEETING MINUTES

and unmodified audit. Resolution 2025-03-02 was presented to review/approve and accept
the Financial Statement and Independent Audit Results. There were no questions. After a
motion made by Mr. Alexander to accept Resolution 2025-03-02, seconded by Mr. Cinquanti,
Resolution 2025-03-02 was accepted pursuant to a unanimous vote. Next, Mr. Owens
provided a review of the Audit Committee Charter, including the responsibilities of the
Committee. No recommendations were made for any changes to the Audit Committee
Charter. After a motion made by Mr. Alexander to accept Resolution 2025-03-03, seconded
by Mr. Cinquanti, Resolution 2025-03-03 was accepted pursuant to a unanimous vote. Next,
Mr. Owens provided an overview of Management’s Assessment of Internal Controls.
Following such review/discussion, and after a motion made by Ms. Brooks to accept
Resolution 2025-03-04, seconded by Mr. Cinquanti, Resolution 2025-03-04 was accepted
pursuant to a unanimous vote.

3. The next order of business was Other Business. There was no other business.

4. Next order of business was Executive Session. There was no Executive Session.

5. The meeting was adjourned with unanimous consent of all Board members.

Helen Brooks, Board Secretary

Board Minutes as approved by Board on May 28, 2025



RESOLUTION 2025-11-01
OF THE ADVANCE ALBANY COUNTY ALLIANCE
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AUDIT COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, the Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation (the
“Corporation”) is a "local authority" as defined within the Public Authorities Law ("PAL") of the
State of New York; and

WHEREAS, Section 2802 of the PAL provides that the Corporation shall annually have
an audit performed by an independent certified accountant; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to PAL, the Corporation has formed an Audit Committee and
adopted a Committee Charter which provides that the Audit Committee shall be responsible for
appointing the Corporation’s independent auditor and reviewing and approving the Corporation’s
financial statements; and

WHEREAS, Section 4(A) of the Corporation Procurement Policy provides that the
solicitation of alternative proposals and quotations may not be in the best interest of the
Corporation for “Professional services . . . requiring special or technical skill, training or expertise.
The individual, company or firm must be chosen based on accountability, reliability, responsibility,
skill, conflict of interests, reputation, education and training, judgment, integrity, continuity of
service and moral worth. Furthermore, certain professional services to be provided to the
Corporation, e.g., legal and accounting services, impact liability issues of the Corporation and its
members, including securities liability in circumstances where the Corporation is issuing bonds. .

In determining whether a service fits into this category, the Corporation shall take into
consideration the following guidelines: (a) whether the services are subject to State licensing or
testing requirements; (b) whether substantial formal education or training is a necessary
prerequisite to the performance of the services; and (c) whether the services require a personal
relationship between the individual and Corporation members;” and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the above statutory requirement and in accordance with Section
4(A) of the Procurement Policy, the Corporation desires to procure independent audit services
from the Bonadio Group to conduct an independent audit for 2025 pursuant to, and in accordance
with relevant legal requirements and to prepare/file the Corporations 2025 Tax Returns
(collectively the “Audit Services™); and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Chief Executive Officer is authorized and
directed to prepare, negotiate, and execute any and all agreements and other related documents
necessary to procure the Audit Services.

Dated: November 19, 2025

Audit Chairperson

Motion made by:
Seconded by:
Vote:



Bonadio & Co., L1p
Accounting, Consulting (& More

Audit Planning Communication ,/ !
2025 Audit Plan ‘

November 19, 2025




Bonadio & Co., Lip

Accounting, Consulting (& More

Albany Office
6 Wembley Court
Albany, NY 12205
p (518) 464-4080
f (518) 464-4087

Buffalo Office
100 Corporate Parkway
Suite 200
Amherst, NY 14226
p (716) 250-6600
f (716) 250-6605

Dallas Office
7557 Rambler Road,
Suite 600
Dallas, TX 75231
p (214) 346-0750
f (214) 346-0784

East Aurora Office
100 Riley Street
East Aurora, NY 14052
p (716) 652-1042
f (716) 652-1292

New York City Office
1040 Avenue of the
Americas, 3rd Floor
New York, NY 10018

p (212) 600-2854

Rochester Office
171 Sully’s Trail
Pittsford, NY 14534
p (585) 381-1000
f (585) 381-3131

Rutland, Vermont Office
135 North Main Street,
Suite 10
Rutland, VT 05701
p (802) 775-8970
f (802) 775-0863

Syracuse Office
432 North Franklin Street, #60
Syracuse, NY 13204
p (315) 476-4004
f (315) 254-2384

Utica Office
7936 Seneca Turnpike
Clinton, NY 13323
p (315) 797-7781
f (315) 797-0305

Virginia Beach Office
301 Bendix Road
Virginia Beach, VA 23452
p (757) 448-3988

Wilmington Office
2711 Centerville Road,
Suite 100
Wilmington, DE 19808
p (302) 656-6632
f (302) 656-1811

www.bonadio.com

ALBANY ¢ BUFFALO « DALLAS « EAST AURORA « NEW YORK CITY « ROCHESTER ¢ RUTLAND « SYRACUSE « UTICA « VIRGINIA BEACH + WILMINGTON

November 19, 2025

Dear Members of the Board of Directors of Advance
Albany County Alliance:

We are pleased to present our 2025 Audit Plan for the
financial statements of Advance Albany County Alliance
(the “Organization”). The information included in this
report allows you to understand the judgments we have
made in planning and scoping our audit procedures.

This report was prepared based on information obtained
from meetings with management, knowledge of the
Organization, consideration of the business environment
and risk assessment procedures. Our audit approach will
remain flexible and responsive to the Organization’s
environment. Any significant changes to our audit plan
will be discussed with the Board of Directors at a future
meeting.

Discussion of our audit plan ensures our Bonadio
engagement team members understand your concerns
and together we agree on mutual needs and
expectations, which enables us to provide the highest
level of service and audit quality. We value and
encourage your observations and your input.

We look forward to addressing your questions and
discussing any other matters of interest. Please feel free
to call me at (518) 250-7708.

Very truly yours,

Kevin Testo, CPA
Engagement Partner

7



01

Executive
Summary




Executive Summary

Audit Planning Considerations

Current Year Activity

* Purchase of building in January 2025 (prior year subsequent event)
« Over $8M in liquid investments
«$7.2M in deferred revenue (compared to $3.8M in 2024)

« $800,000 in legal/professional fees

The Audit Highlights

* We affirm our independence with Advance Albany County Alliance.
*No new accounting standards in 2025 that will impact the Organization.

Bonadio & Co., LLP 9 3



02

Audit
Approach




Audit Approach

Our Primary Objectives are to:

» Perform an audit in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
(GAAS) to obtain reasonable assurance the Organization’s financial
statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) and are free from material misstatement whether caused
by error or fraud.

* Render an opinion on the financial statements of Advance Albany County
Alliance as of December 31, 2025, and for the year ending.

* Our audit does not relieve management of its responsibilities regarding
governance and oversight.

« An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Our Audit Deliverables

* Audit report on Advance Albany County Alliance’s December 31, 2025
financial statements

« Examination report related to investment guidelines for the year ending
December 31, 2025

* Preparation of IRS Form 990

Bonadio & Co., LLP 11 5



Audit Approach

Risk Assessment Process and Results

Approach and Definitions

» The use of a top-down, risk-based approach
» The application of well-reasoned professional judgment

+ These principles, with the application of materiality, allow us to develop and
execute our audit approach in an effective and efficient manner. The results
of our risk assessment include the identification of audit risks and also drives
the identification of significant accounts. We evaluate audit risks as defined
below.

Fraud risk — requires special audit consideration in terms of the nature,
timing or extent of testing due to the consideration of incentives, pressures
and opportunities to commit fraud, likely magnitude of potential
misstatements and/or the likelihood of the risk occurring.

requires special audit consideration in terms of the nature,
timing or extent of testing due to the risk’s nature, likely magnitude of
potential misstatement and/or likelihood of that risk occurring - including the
possibility that the risk may give rise to multiple misstatements.

Normal risk — relates to the relatively routine, non-complex transactions that
tend to be subject to systematic processing and require little management
judgment. Although a risk of material misstatement exists, there are no
special factors related to the nature, the likely magnitude of the potential
misstatements or the likelihood of the risk occurring.

Bonadio & Co., LLP 12 6



Audit Approach

Risk Assessment Process and Results

Fraud and Significant Risks

We have outlined below the fraud and significant risks identified based on our
preliminary risk assessment process, together with our planned audit response.

Risk Description

Planned Audit Response

Fraud — Risk of management
override of controls, including
accounting for significant unusual
transactions, particularly sensitive
accounting estimates, and manual
journal entries

» Test journal entries focusing on
certain characteristics that may
indicate a risk of fraud

» Test underlying assumptions used
in any sensitive accounting
estimates

* Review financial statements for
inaccurate or omitted disclosures

» Make inquiry of key members of
management

Revenue recognition — A significant
risk of fraud in revenue recognition
exists

» Assess relevant revenue controls
for design effectiveness and
implementation

» Test manual journal entries
focusing on unusual entries that
impact revenue

» Test material revenue transactions

Bonadio & Co., LLP

13 7



Audit Approach

Client Service Team

Kenneth McGivney
Engagement Partner
ktesto@bonadio.com
(518) 250-7708

Samuel Zadrozny
Manager
szadrozny@bonadio.com
(518) 250-7725

Bonadio & Co., LLP 14 8



Audit Approach

Timeline and Communication Plan

The table below outlines our expected timing of communications and planned
audit procedures. In addition, we may communicate with you more frequently, if
and when significant matters arise.

November — December 2025:

Planning

» Meet with Management to understand SIEIE0 AL el e e
the business, assess risk and obtain
update of business and operating plan * Meet with the Board of
« Assess the key audit risks and Directors to discuss
materiality results of the audit
« Complete understanding of controls * Subsequent event
and preliminary scoping of accounts, procedures
processes and locations * Form 990 preparation

January-February 2026: Execution

» Perform substantive procedures as of year-end

Bonadio & Co., LLP 15 9



Audit Approach

Other Required Communications

Fraud

We are required to make certain inquiries of the Board of Directors related to
fraud risks. In addition, as part of our overall response to fraud risk, we
incorporate unpredictability into our audit by modifying the nature, timing and
extent of our procedures.

Fraud is a broad legal concept, and auditors do not make legal determinations
of whether fraud has occurred. Rather, the auditor's interest specifically relates
to acts that result in a material misstatement of the financial statements. The
primary factor that distinguishes fraud from error is whether the underlying
action that results in the misstatement of the financial statements is intentional.
The following two types of misstatements are relevant to the auditor's
consideration of fraud:

Misstatements arising from fraudulent Fraud Items

financial reporting are intentional
misstatements or omissions of amounts or
disclosures in financial statements designed

For Discussion:

to deceive financial statement users when the * Programs and controls in place
effect causes the financial statements not to to mitigate the risk of fraud and
be presented in all material respects, in error

conformity with generally accepted « Specific concerns about
accounting principles (GAAP). the risk of fraud or error

* Any actual, alleged or
suspected fraud

. . * Violations or possible violations
Misstatements arising from

of law
misappropriation of assets involve the theft
of an entity's assets when the effect of the * Other matters relevant to the
theft causes the financial statements not to audit

be presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with GAAP.

Bonadio & Co., LLP 16 10



Audit Approach

Other Required Communications

Independence

There are no relationships or other matters identified that might reasonably be
thought to bear on independence.

Non-compliance with laws and regulations and illegal acts

We have not identified any instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We have not identified any potential illegal acts.

Significant issues discussed with management prior to appointment or
retention

There are no significant issues discussed with management in connection with
the retention of Bonadio.

Obtain information relevant to the audit

We will inquire of the Board of Directors about whether it is aware of matters
relevant to the audit and about the risks of material misstatement.

Bonadio & Co., LLP 17 11



03

Appendices




THE BONADIO GROUP

Accounting, Consulting (& More

Subsidiaries
and Affiliates

/4 Z /[ ﬂc’/z a

Healthcare business practice innovation and outsourcing

BEACON

A\ FoxPointe
v/ Solutions

CYBERSECURITY ¢ IT CONSULTING * COMPLIANCE

Athena offers sales and lead generation management services to help
our clients promote and sell their products and services to a variety
of market segments and industry applications.

Beacon Solutions Group helps providers navigate the complex currents
of the evolving health care industry. Their unigque integration of clinical,
operational, and financial expertise is geared to identify meaningful
business opportunities and detect the root causes of problems.

FoxPointe Solutions is dedicated to helping protect your data
and assets, while achieving industry standards and regulatory
compliance in the ever-changing cyber security landscape.




msC

COST SEGREGATION
EXPERTISE

o
A Probity
ax Recovery

WHY PAY MORE?

‘ ; PRONEXUS

Projects. Consulting. Outsourcing.

Commercial
. Capital
Partners

TA

TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY SERVICES

High Probability Advisors implements factor-based investing based
on advanced analytics and academic research, designed to optimize
performance, minimize costs, and minimize downside.

A division of The Bonadio Group, MS Consultants is a full-service
consulting company for all issues related to real estate income taxation.
From cost segregation studies to energy consulting, they have the
experience and expertise on all applicable tax and real estate issues.

Probity Tax Recovery is a tax consulting firm specializing in tax credits
and incentives for small to mid-sized businesses. We work with business
owners and their CPAs to identify tax credits and incentives while saving
you time and money. You get the tax benefit you’re entitled to while
keeping your time where it matters, running your business.

ProNexus is a national professional services firm that delivers
finance, accounting, and IT business solutions and consulting
services. They leverage the skills of highly experienced financial
and technology experts to address our clients’ needs through

a mix of engagement models.

TBG Commercial Capital Partners works to meet the financing needs
of developers, property owners, business owners and entrepreneurs,
and their need to secure capital.

Since 1987, TAS has conducted a wide range of transportation studies
for school districts, agencies, universities, and associations making them
the Nation’s largest dedicated student transportation consulting firm.

20



Bonadio & Co., 11p
Accounting, Consulting (& More

Albany | Buffalo | Dallas | East Aurora | New York City | Rochester | Rutland | Syracuse | Utica | Virginia Beach



Bonadio & Co., 11p

Accounting, Consulting (& More

November 12, 2025

Kevin O’Connor, CEO

Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
112 State Street

Albany, NY 12207

Dear Kevin:

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for
Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation for the year
ended December 31, 2025.

Audit Scope and Objectives

We will audit the financial statements of Advance Albany County Alliance Local
Development Corporation (the “Organization” or “you” or “your”), which comprise
the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2025, the related statements
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
disclosures (collectively, the “financial statements”).

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion about
whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based
on the financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and will include tests of your
accounting records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to
express such an opinion. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management. We will
also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, including the

6 Wembley Court disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the
Albany, NY 12205

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

p (518) 464-4080 ) : .

f (518) 464-4087 We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors,

www.bonadio.com (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of

laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the Organization or to acts
by management or employees acting on behalf of the Organization.

22

ALBANY ¢ BUFFALO « DALLAS * EAST AURORA +« NEW YORK CITY « ROCHESTER ¢ RUTLAND ¢ SARASOTA + SYRACUSE +« UTICA ¢ VIRGINIA BEACH + WILMINGTON



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
November 12, 2025
Page 2

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control,
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable
risk that some material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly
planned and performed in accordance with GAAS. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct
and material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of
management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that
comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of
laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. Our
responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later
periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

We will obtain an understanding of the Organization and its environment, including the system of
internal control, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the
override of internal control. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to
identify deficiencies in internal control. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during
the audit, we will communicate to you and those charged with governance internal control related
matters that are required to be communicated under professional standards.

We have identified the following significant risks of material misstatement as part of our audit planning:

1. Risk of management override of controls
2. Fraudulent revenue recognition

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization ‘s ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and
certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors,
and financial institutions. We will also request written representations from your attorneys as part of
the engagement.

The auditors’ procedures do not include testing compliance with laws and regulations in any jurisdiction
related to Medicare and Medicaid antifraud and abuse. It is the responsibility of management of the
Organization, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure that the Organization’s
operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations, including
compliance with the provision of laws and regulations that determine the reported amounts and
disclosures in the Organization’s financial statements. Therefore, management’s responsibilities for
compliance with laws and regulations applicable to its operations, include, but are not limited to, those
related to Medicare and Medicaid antifraud and abuse statutes.

23



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
November 12, 2025
Page 3

We may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers
(including those located outside the United States) in serving your account. We may share confidential
information about you with these service providers but remain committed to maintaining the
confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain internal policies, procedures,
and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will secure
confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information
and we will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate procedures in place
to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the event that we are
unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent
prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party service provider. Furthermore,
we will remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party service providers.

Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, including monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles;
and for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. You are also responsible for making
drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related information available to us; for the
accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from outside of the general and
subsidiary ledgers); and for the evaluation of whether there are any conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. You are
also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records,
documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions,
and other matters; (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and (3)
unrestricted access to persons within the Organization from whom we determine it necessary to obtain
audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you
about the financial statements and related matters.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and
confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as
a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the Organization involving (1)
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing
us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Organization received
in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition,
you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Organization complies with applicable laws
and regulations.

With regard to including the auditor’s report in an exempt offering document, you agree that the
aforementioned auditor’s report, or reference to our Firm, will not be included in any such offering
document without our prior written consent. Any agreement to perform work in connection with an
exempt offering document, including an agreement to provide permission or consent, will be a
separate engagement.

24



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
November 12, 2025
Page 4

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial
statements published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means
to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these
sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.

With regard to using the auditor’s report, you understand you must obtain our prior written consent to
reproduce our report in bond offerings, official statements, or other documents, if required under the
bond requirements.

Other Services
We will also prepare the Organization’s federal information return for the year ended December 31,
2025, for the federal jurisdiction, as outlined in our separate engagement letter based on information
provided by you.

We will also assist in preparing the financial statements of the Organization in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America based on information
provided by you.

We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards, including the
Statements on Standards for Tax Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The other services are limited to the financial statement and tax services previously
defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure
or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. We will advise
management with regard to tax positions taken in the preparation of the information return, but
management must make all decisions with regard to those matters.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the tax services, financial statement
preparation services, and any other nonattest services we provide; oversee the services by
designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or
experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for them.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, and other
confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. We will schedule
the engagement based in part on deadlines, working conditions, and the availability of your key
personnel. We will plan the engagement based on the assumption that your personnel will cooperate
and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing requested schedules, retrieving
supporting documents, and preparing confirmations. If, for whatever reason, your personnel are
unavailable to provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the
work we have to do to complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an
increase in fees over our original fee estimate.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Bonadio & Co., LLP and constitutes
confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation
available to regulators pursuant to authority given to them by law or regulation. If requested, access
to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Bonadio & Co., LLP personnel.
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

25



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
November 12, 2025
Page 5

Bonadio & Co., LLP does not host any of the Organization’s information. Our file share sites (i.e.,
myPortal/SharePoint) is used solely as a method of transferring data and is not intended to store the
Organization’s information. The Organization is solely responsible for downloading any deliverables
and other records that the Organization wishes to retain for its own records at the completion of the
engagement. The data and deliverables and other records will either be removed from our file share
sites or otherwise become unavailable to the Organization at any time after issuance of the financial
statements.

Kevin C. Testo is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the report or authorizing another individual to sign it. To ensure that Bonadio & Co. LLP’s
independence is not impaired under the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct, you agree to inform
the engagement partner before entering into any substantive employment discussions with any of our
personnel.

We estimate that our fees for the audit to be $17,500 and $2,000 for the preparation of the information
return. The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption
that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. If significant additional
time is necessary, we will keep you informed of any problems we encounter and our fees will be
adjusted accordingly.

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on
presentation. Amounts not paid within 45 days from the invoice date will be subject to a late payment
charge of 1.5% per month. We reserve the right to suspend all work if an account becomes one
hundred and twenty or more days past due. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our
engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if
we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all the time expended
and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination.

You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter. If this
occurs, we will communicate with you concerning the scope of the additional services and the
estimated fees. We also may issue a separate engagement letter covering the additional services. In
the absence of any other written communication from us documenting such additional services, our
services will continue to be governed by the terms of this engagement letter.

All services will be rendered by and under the supervision of qualified staff in accordance with AICPA
standards and the terms and conditions set forth in this letter. We make no other representation or
warranty regarding either the services to be provided or any Deliverables; in particular, and without
limitation of the foregoing, any express or implied warranties of fitness for a particular purpose,
merchantability, warranties arising by custom or usage in the profession, and warranties arising by
operation of law are expressly disclaimed.

In no event, unless it has been finally determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that we were
grossly negligent or acted willfully or fraudulently, shall we be liable to you or any of your officers,
directors, employees or shareholders or to any other third party, whether a claim be in tort, contract or
otherwise for any amount in excess of the total professional fee paid by you to us under this agreement
for the particular service to which such claim relates. In no event shall we be liable for any special,
consequential, indirect, exemplary, punitive, lost profits or similar damages, even if we have been
apprised of the possibility thereof.

26



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
November 12, 2025
Page 6

Neither party shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure to perform any of the services nor
obligations set forth in this letter due to causes beyond its reasonable control. All terms and conditions
of this letter that are intended by their nature to survive termination of this letter shall survive
termination and remain in full force, including but not limited to the terms and conditions concerning
payments, warranties, limitations of liability, indemnities, and resolution of differences. If any provision
of this letter is determined to be invalid under any applicable law, such provision will be applied to the
maximum extent permitted by applicable law, and shall automatically be deemed amended in a
manner consistent with its objectives to the extent necessary to conform to any limitations required
under applicable law.

You agree to indemnify and hold harmless us and our affiliates, officers, directors, employees, and
agents from and against any and all claims, liabilities, damages, losses, costs, and expenses
(including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising out of or related to any third-party claims, demands,
lawsuits, or proceedings arising out of or related to or in connection with the services under this
Agreement, except to the extent finally determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have resulted
from the gross negligence, willful misconduct, or fraudulent behavior of us relating to such services.

In the event of a dispute related in any way to our services, our firm and you agree to discuss the
dispute and if necessary, to promptly mediate in a good faith effort to resolve. We will agree on a
mediator, but if we cannot, either of us may apply to a court of competent jurisdiction located in Monroe
County, State of New York for appointment of a mediator. We will share the mediator's fees and
expenses equally, but otherwise will bear our own attorneys' fees and mediation cost. Participation in
such mediation shall be a condition to either of us initiating litigation, which, if initiated, shall be done
so in a court of competent jurisdiction located in Monroe County, State of New York. In order to allow
time for the mediation, any applicable statute of limitations shall be tolled for a period not to exceed
120 days from the date either of us first requests in writing to mediate the dispute. The mediation shall
be confidential in all respects, as allowed or required by law, except our final settlement positions at
mediation shall be admissible in litigation solely to determine the prevailing party's identity for purposes
of the award of attorneys' fees.

In the unlikely event that differences concerning this engagement or our services provided hereunder
should arise that are not resolved by mutual agreement, to facilitate judicial resolution and save time
and expense of both parties, we both agree not to demand a trial by jury in any action, proceeding or
counterclaim arising out of or relating to this engagement. This engagement will be governed by the
laws of the State of New York.

We have the right to withdraw from this engagement if you do not provide us with any information we
request in a timely manner, refuse to cooperate with our reasonable requests, or misrepresent any
facts. Our withdrawal will release us from any obligation to complete the work described in this letter
and will constitute completion of our engagement. You agree to compensate us for our time and out-
of-pocket expenses through the date of our withdrawal.

Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Organization’s financial statements.
Our report will be addressed to the Board of Directors and Management of the Organization.
Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on
the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us
to modify our opinion, add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph
to our auditor’'s report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinion is other than
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to
complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an
opinion or withdraw from this engagement.

27



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
November 12, 2025
Page 7

Electronic Communications

In performing services under this Agreement, Bonadio & Co., LLP and/or the Organization may wish
to communicate electronically either via facsimile, electronic mail, cloud-based portal or similar
methods (collectively, "Electronic Means"). However, the electronic transmission of information cannot
be guaranteed to be secure or error free, and such information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost,
destroyed, arrive late or incomplete or otherwise be adversely affected or unsafe to use. Unless you
notify us otherwise, we shall regard your acceptance of this Agreement as your consent to use
Electronic Means. It is therefore your responsibility to notify Bonadio & Co., LLP when/if your
employee(s) no longer require access to Electronic Means that are controlled by Bonadio & Co., LLP.
Such notice may be sent by email to the partner responsible for this engagement at the address noted
in the signature section of this Agreement. All risks related to your business, including access
connected with the use of Electronic Means by you or your employees are borne by you and are not
our responsibility.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes
the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the attached copy and return
it to us.

Very truly yours,

BONADIO & CO., LLP

e
-

l”/’i}'_/’.‘/\ . S

By:
Kevin C. Testo, CPA
Partner

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Advance Albany County Alliance Local
Development Corporation:

Management signature:

Title:

Date:

28



Bonadio & Co., 11p

Accounting, Consulting (& More

November 12, 2025

Kevin O’Connor, CEO

Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
112 State Street

Albany, NY 12207

Dear Kevin:

This letter is to confirm and specify the terms of our engagement with Advance
Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation for the year ended
December 31, 2025 and to clarify the nature and extent of the tax services we will
provide.

Entire Agreement

This engagement letter ("Agreement") constitutes the entire agreement between
the client to whom such engagement letter is addressed and any other legal
entities referred to therein ("Client" or "you") and Bonadio & Co., LLP, a New York
limited liability partnership ("Bonadio & Co., LLP" "we" or "us"), regarding the
services described in the engagement letter.

Responsibilities of Bonadio & Co., LLP
Our engagement is limited to performing the following services:

a. Tax Return Services
Tax return services include the preparation of the federal information return listed
on Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

We will perform our services utilizing the information you have provided and in
consideration of the applicable federal, foreign, state or local tax laws, regulations
and associated interpretations relative to the appropriate jurisdiction as of the date
the services are provided. Tax laws and regulations are subject to change at any
time, and such changes may be retroactive in effect and may be applicable to
advice given or other services rendered before their effective dates. We do not
assume responsibility for such changes occurring after the date we have
completed our services.

This Agreement does not cover the preparation of any tax returns not listed on
Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof or financial statements, which,
if we are to provide, will be subject to the terms of a separate engagement letter.

Responsibilities of the Client

6 Wembley Court You are responsible for the safeguarding of assets, the proper recording of
sl(%?g;” 4'\('52_1%22 transactions in the books of accounts, the substantial accuracy of the financial
f (518) 464-4087 records, and the full and accurate disclosure of all relevant facts affecting the

return(s) to us. You also have final responsibility for the tax return and, therefore,
www.bonadio.com the appropriate officials should review the return carefully before an authorized

officer signs and files it.

29

ALBANY ¢ BUFFALO « DALLAS * EAST AURORA +« NEW YORK CITY « ROCHESTER ¢ RUTLAND ¢ SARASOTA + SYRACUSE +« UTICA ¢ VIRGINIA BEACH + WILMINGTON



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
November 12, 2025
Page 2

You are responsible for assuming all management responsibilities, and for overseeing any services
we provide by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience. In addition, you are responsible for evaluating the adequacy
and results of the services performed and accepting responsibility for the results of such services.

We may provide you with a questionnaire or other document requesting specific information.
Completing those forms will assist us in making sure you are well served for a reasonable fee. We will
not verify the information you give us; however, we may ask for additional clarification of some
information.

If, during our work, we discover information that affects prior-year tax returns, we will make you aware
of the facts. However, we cannot be responsible for identifying all items that may affect prior-year
returns. If you become aware of such information during the year, please contact us to discuss the
best resolution of the issue. We will be happy to prepare appropriate amended returns as a separate
engagement.

Our work in connection with the preparation of the tax return(s) does not include any procedures
designed to discover defalcations or other irregularities, should any exist. The returns will be prepared
solely from information provided to us without verification by us.

Electronic Communications

In performing services under this Agreement, Bonadio & Co., LLP and/or Client may wish to
communicate electronically either via facsimile, electronic mail or similar methods (collectively, "E-
mail"). However, the electronic transmission of information cannot be guaranteed to be secure or error
free, and such information could be intercepted, corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete
or otherwise be adversely affected or unsafe to use. Unless you notify us otherwise, we shall regard
your acceptance of this Agreement as including your consent to use E-mail. All risks related to your
business and connected with the use of E-mail are borne by you and are not our responsibility.

Electronic Filing

Your return may be electronically filed with the IRS and states requiring electronic filing. We will provide
you with a copy of your final returns for review prior to electronic transmission. The IRS requires that
you sign an e-file authorization form indicating that you have reviewed the return, it is correct to the
best of your knowledge, and you authorize us to submit it electronically. We cannot transmit any return
until we have the appropriate signed authorizations.

Foreign Asset Responsibilities

Certain entities may be required to electronically file Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial
Accounts (FBAR) with the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Failure to comply with the filing
requirements may result in significant civil and criminal penalties.

We are able to assist you in the preparation of these foreign account filings if you request. If you would
like us to prepare these filings, or if you have questions concerning your filing obligations, you should
contact us as soon as possible and provide us with all requested information.

Disclosure

The Internal Revenue Code and regulations impose preparation and disclosure standards with
noncompliance penalties on both the preparer of a tax return and on the taxpayer. To avoid exposure
to these penalties, it may be necessary in some cases to make certain disclosures to you and/or in
the tax return concerning positions taken on the return that do not meet these standards. Accordingly,
we will advise you if we identify such a situation, and we will discuss those tax positions that may
increase the risk of exposure to penalties and any recommended disclosures with you before
completing the preparation of the return. If we conclude that we are obligated to disclose a position
and you refuse to permit the disclosure, we reserve the right to withdraw from the engagement.

30



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
November 12, 2025
Page 3

Likewise, where we disagree about the obligation to disclose a position, you also have a right to choose
another professional to prepare your return. In either event, you agree to compensate us for our
services to the date of withdrawal. Our engagement with you will terminate upon our withdrawal.

The IRS permits you to authorize us to discuss, on a limited basis, aspects of your return for one year
after the return's due date. Your consent to such a discussion is evidenced by checking a box on the
return. Unless you tell us otherwise, we will check that box authorizing the IRS to discuss your return
with us.

Certain communications involving tax advice are privileged and not subject to disclosure to the IRS.
By disclosing the contents of those communications to anyone, or by turning over information about
those communications to the government, you, your employees, or agents may be waiving this
privilege. To protect this right to privileged communication, please consult with us or your attorney
prior to disclosing any information about our tax advice. Should you decide that it is appropriate for us
to disclose any potentially privileged communication, you agree to provide us with written, advance
authority to make that disclosure.

Should we receive any request for the disclosure of privileged information from any third party,
including a subpoena or IRS summons, we will notify you. In the event you direct us not to make the
disclosure, you agree to hold us harmless from any expenses incurred in defending the privilege,
including, by way of illustration only, our attorney's fees, court costs, outside adviser's costs, or
penalties or fines imposed as a result of your asserting the privilege or your direction to us to assert
the privilege.

In accordance with federal law, in no case will we disclose your tax return information to any location
outside the United States, to another tax return preparer outside of our firm for purposes of a second
opinion, or to any other third party for any purpose other than to prepare your return without first
receiving your consent, unless mandated by judicial or lawful order.

Recordkeeping

It is our policy to keep records for seven years. However, we do not keep any of your original records,
so we will return those to you upon the completion of the engagement. When records are returned to
you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect the records for possible future use, including potential
examination by governmental or regulatory agencies. A copy of your return should be kept indefinitely.

The return(s) may be selected for review by the taxing authorities. In the event of an audit, you may
be requested to produce documents, records, or other evidence to substantiate the items of income
and deduction shown on a tax return. Any proposed adjustments by the examining agent are subject
to certain rights of appeal. In the event of a tax examination, we will be available, upon request, to
represent you under the terms of a separate engagement letter.

Federal and State Law Changes

With many significant changes in the federal and state tax law, we may be requesting additional
information from you regarding specific provisions which may apply to you. ltis critical that you provide
complete, accurate, and timely responses to these information requests, so that we may assess the
provisions that apply to you and prepare required calculations and disclosures with your returns. The
provisions will impact each taxpayer differently, and therefore it is possible that the time needed to
prepare your return(s) and associated fees may increase as compared to the prior year.

Fees

Our fees for tax services will be based in part upon the amount of time required at our standard billing
rates for the personnel working on the engagement, plus out-of-pocket expenses. All invoices are due
and payable upon presentation. Amounts not paid within 45 days from the invoice date will be subject
to a late payment charge of 1.5% per month.

31



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
November 12, 2025
Page 4

Our fee estimate for the tax return preparation services listed are outlined in Exhibit A.

Fees for additional tax services that fall outside the scope of this tax compliance engagement are
based upon our standard billing rates for the personnel working on the engagement. Billing rates vary
depending on the experience level of the staff member providing the services.

Limitation of Liability

All services will be rendered by and under the supervision of qualified staff in accordance with AICPA
standards and the terms and conditions set forth in this letter. Bonadio & Co., LLP makes no other
representation or warranty regarding either the services to be provided or any Deliverables; in
particular, and without limitation of the foregoing, any express or implied warranties of fithess for a
particular purpose, merchantability, warranties arising by custom or usage in the profession, and
warranties arising by operation of law are expressly disclaimed.

In no event, unless it has been finally determined that Bonadio & Co., LLP was grossly negligent or
acted willfully or fraudulently, shall Bonadio & Co., LLP be liable to the Client or any of its officers,
directors, employees or shareholders or to any other third party, whether a claim be in tort, contract or
otherwise for any amount in excess of the total professional fee paid by you to us under this agreement
for the particular service to which such claim relates. In no event shall Bonadio & Co., LLP be liable
for any special, consequential, indirect, exemplary, punitive, lost profits or similar damages, even if we
have been apprised of the possibility thereof.

Neither party shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure to perform any of the services nor
obligations set forth in this letter due to causes beyond its reasonable control. All terms and conditions
of this letter that are intended by their nature to survive termination of this letter shall survive
termination and remain in full force, including but not limited to the terms and conditions concerning
payments, warranties, limitations of liability, indemnities, and resolution of differences. If any provision
of this letter is determined to be invalid under any applicable law, such provision will be applied to the
maximum extent permitted by applicable law, and shall automatically be deemed amended in a
manner consistent with its objectives to the extent necessary to conform to any limitations required
under applicable law.

Confidential Information

All information shall be provided to Bonadio by you. Any information that has been provided orally or
in writing by you on behalf of you or any of you employees or clients to Bonadio pursuant to this
engagement or through any other type of contact, including information generated as a result of
Bonadio's services thereunder ("Confidential Information"), shall be treated by Bonadio as proprietary
information belonging to you, and shall be held in strict confidence by Bonadio both during and after
the term of this engagement and thereafter. All financial data pertaining to you, your clients or
Bonadio's services hereunder, and all data, information, and records of or pertaining to you, your
employees, and your clients, shall be deemed to be Confidential Information.

With respect to all Confidential Information, Bonadio shall: (1) not provide or make available the
Confidential Information in any form to any person other than Bonadio's or your employees,
contractors, agents, and other personnel who have a need to know consistent with the authorized use
of such Confidential Information; (2) not reproduce the Confidential Information except for use
reasonably necessary to the performance of this agreement; (3) not exploit or use the Confidential
Information except as permitted by this agreement; and (4) return or destroy all Confidential
Information that is written or in graphic form, and any copies thereof, upon your request or upon the
termination of this agreement, however we may keep archival copies of such Confidential Information
if reasonably needed to comply with our professional standards, subject to the remaining terms of this
paragraph.

32



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation
November 12, 2025
Page 5

In the event that a subpoena or other legal process in any way concerning the Confidential Information
is served on Bonadio, we shall notify you immediately upon receipt thereof and shall reasonably
cooperate with you and your legal counsel prior to the production of such Confidential Information as
required by such subpoena or legal process. Any legal process to assert that any and all such
information is exempt from disclosure as subject to attorney-client privilege would be the responsibility
of your legal counsel.

We may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in
serving your account (including vendors located outside of the United States). We may share
confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain committed to maintaining
the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain internal policies,
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we
will secure confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your
information and we will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have appropriate
procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to others.
Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party service
providers.

Indemnification

You agree to indemnify and hold harmless Bonadio and our personnel from any and all Third-Party
claims, liabilities, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees, arising from or relating to
the services under this Agreement, except to the extent finally determined to have resulted from the
gross negligence, willful misconduct or fraudulent behavior of Bonadio relating to such services.

You expressly understand and agree that you are solely responsible for the accuracy and
completeness of any information or content you may place on our file site (i.e. myPortal/SharePoint)
and that we are relying on the content provided by you as the basis for any services we may provide
hereunder. By placing your information and content on our file sharing site, you consent to its use by
us and further understand and agree that we are not responsible for any: (i) damage to nor theft of, or
(i) any misuse or misappropriation of, such information or content. You are responsible for granting,
denying, and removing access to our file sharing site.

Dispute Resolution

You agree that any dispute (other than our efforts to collect an outstanding invoice) that may arise
regarding the meaning, performance or enforcement of this engagement or any prior engagement that
we have performed for you, will, prior to resorting to litigation, be submitted to mediation, and that the
parties will engage in the mediation process in good faith once a written request to mediate has been
given by any party to the engagement. Any mediation initiated as a result of this engagement shall be
administered within the county of Monroe, New York and any ensuing litigation shall be conducted
within said county, according to New York law. The results of any such mediation shall be binding only
upon agreement of each party to be bound. The costs of any mediation proceeding shall be shared
equally by the participating parties.

In the unlikely event that differences concerning this Agreement or our services provided hereunder
should arise that are not resolved by mutual agreement, to facilitate judicial resolution and save time
and expense of both parties, Bonadio & Co., LLP and the Client agree not to demand a trial by jury in
any action, proceeding or counterclaim arising out of or relating to this Agreement.

We have the right to withdraw from this engagement if you do not provide us with any information we
request in a timely manner, refuse to cooperate with our reasonable requests, or misrepresent any
facts. Our withdrawal will release us from any obligation to complete your return and will constitute
completion of our engagement. You agree to compensate us for our time and out-of-pocket expenses
through the date of our withdrawal.

33



Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation

November 12, 2025
Page 6

If this Agreement accurately describes your understanding of our engagements, please sign below
and return one copy to our office. We will require a signed copy of this Agreement back from you
before we provide you with your income tax returns or financial statements. If you disagree with any
of these terms, please notify us immediately.

We want to express our appreciation for this opportunity to work with you.

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the
Development Corporation:

Management signature:

Very truly yours,

BONADIO & CO., LLP

P
-

L. - fed 705

By:
Kevin C. Testo, CPA
Partner

understanding of Advance Albany County Alliance Local

Title:
Date:
Exhibit A
List of Tax Returns to be Prepared
Entity Year-end Forms Fee
Advance Albany County Alliance | December 31, | IRS Form 990, Return of | $2,000
Local Development Corporation 2025 Organization Exempt From
Income Tax

34



	0. AACA Audit Committee Agenda_11.19.25
	1. AACA Audit Committee_Roll Call_11.19.25
	2. AACA_Audit Committee_Meeting Minutes 3.26.25
	3. AACA Resolution 2025-11-01
	3a. Alliance Audit Plan
	3b. Advance Albany County 2025 Audit & Tax EL



